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INTRODUCTION

From June 29 through July 1, 1999, the Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) and
Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality (“MDEQ”) conducted a multimedia
compliance investigation at the Hercules Incorporated (“Hercules”) plant located in Hattiesburg,
Mississippi. This Response addresses: (1) EPA’s September 21, 1999 Clean Air Act
Compliance Inspection Report; (2) MDEQ’s January 6, 2000 Clean Air Act Compliance
Evaluation Inspection Report; (3) MDEQ’s July 26, 1999 Resource Conservation and Recovery
Act (“RCRA”) Inspection Report; and (4) EPA’s December 3, 1999 Water Compliance
Inspection Report. Hercules prepared this response to explain what actions it has taken to
address concerns raised in the above-mentioned reports and, as necessary, to clarify the facts and

O the legal requirements relating to various issues. The information being submitted should be
considered preliminary; it will be supplemented as new, relevant information becomes available.
Further, since an enforcement action is being considered, this response is being submitted for
purposes of settlement discussion only. To facilitate review, an Executive Summary in chart

form follows.

O
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

STATUTE
AON; AOC . _
AOD.or - | SUMMARY OF AON, AOC, AOD or.. SUMMARY OF RESPONSE!
SAON! : SAON : ' ' Cres b A0S
CAA - AOC (1) | Recommendation that Hercules verify that Zeon verified that it is not sending HON
Zeon is not sending HON wastewater to wastewater to Hercules’ Water Treatment Plant
Hercules® Water Treatment Plant
CAA - AOC Lack of notification that Hercules has removed | Hercules reported to MDEQ that the Nuephor
(2-3) Emission Point AD003 Process Storage Tank, Emission Point AD003 was
removed
Lack of notification that the Air Emission Point | While it is not currently in use, Hercules prefers to
for the Wastewater Furnace is no longer in use | maintain the Air Emission Point for the
Wastewater Furnace as part of its Title V Permit
CAA - AOC (4) | Failure to perform weekly visual inspection of | Weekly inspection was performed
and AON (6-7) the agitator for week of April 14, 1999
Records attached
Failure to perform weekly inspection of three
pumps for the week of April 14, 1999 Weekly inspection was performed
Records attached
CAA - AOC (5); | Failure to maintain CFC service records Hercules is currently implementing a
AON (16); and comprehensive CFC program to eliminate EPA’s
SAON (9) issues regarding Hercules’ CFC maintenance and
recordkeeping in Hattiesburg
CAA - AOC (6- | Failure to repair a visual leak on the agitator The LDAR agitator was not leaking and, thus, did

7); AON (8-10);
and SAON (5-6)

within 15 days

Failure to maintain records regarding the repair
of the identified leak

Failure to maintain a written work order or
maintenance request system to document leaks,
attempts at repair, or re-monitoring in the
Kymene unit

not require repair

Repair of the LDAR agitator was unnecessary; and
thus, records were not kept regarding the alleged
leak

Hercules uses a logbook-based maintenance
request system to document leaks and attempts at
repair in the Kymene unit

Moreover, Hercules is implementing a new
electronic work order and maintenance request
system to further ensure and document compliance
with LDAR regulations

! AON = Area of Non-Compliance
AOC = Area of Concern
AQD = Area of Deficiency
SAON = Area of Non-Compliance alleged by MDEQ
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STATUTE

AON, AOC : 73 i e
AOD or SUMMARY OF AON, AOC, AOD or SUMM'?ARY OF RESPONSE :
SAON! SAON AR

CAA - AOC (8); | Failure to repair and re-monitor Connector, Connector, Tag No. 0022.00, was repaired within

AON (2); and Tag No. 0022.00, within 15 days 15 days

SAON (1)
Although re-monitoring was not performed within
15 days, Eco-Systems, Inc. concluded that the
Connector was not leaking during re-monitoring
performed in February 1999

CAA - AOC (9); | Eco-Systems, Inc. used an inappropriate Reviewed proper procedure with contractor

AON (1, 3-5); concentration of calibration gases for the

and SAON (2-3)

monitoring it performed on January 14, 1999,
March 25, 1999 and April 14, 1999

Eco-Systems, Inc. failed to perform
calibrations on the LDAR monitoring
instrument on February 25, 1999

Inquiry regarding appropriate leak definition
for pump

Concentration used by Eco did not result in any
harm to the environment because readings were
0.0 ppm even with the lower than required
calibration range that was used

Bocage Specialty Company performed calibrations
on the instrument 48 hours before the LDAR
monitoring on February 25, 1999

5,000 ppm is the appropriate leak definition for
pumps at Hattiesburg

CAA - AOC Failure to close the valve on the reactor side of | This requirement does not apply because the open
(10); AON (11); | the defoamer charging equipment valve on the Kymene defoamer charging
and SAON (7) equipment does not satisfy the definitional
requirement of “open-ended line”
Even assuming the valve on the reactor side
constitutes an open-ended line, Hercules complied
with 40 CF.R. § 63.167
CAA - AOC Recirculating Sample Port was not identified as | Sample Port is not subject to requirements of
(11); AON (12- | part of the LDAR program Subpart H or W because the equipment is in HAP
14); and SAON service less than 300 hours per calendar year
®
Recirculating Sample Port is an open-ended Although Sample Port is exempt, Hercules added a
line without a cap, flange, plug or second valve | cap to the Sample Port
Recirculating Sample Port is a valve which has | Sample Port is exempt
not been monitored
CAA - AOC Failure to comply with 40 C.F.R. Hercules added a plug to the open-ended line near
(12); AON (15); | § 63.167(a)(1) regarding an open-ended line the pump, Tag No. 0010.00
and SAON (8) identified near a pump, Tag No. 0010.00, in the
Kymene unloading area
CAA - AOC Failure to possess on-site replacement filter Hercules has subsequently ordered replacement
(13); AON (17); | bags for the Adipic Acid Shaker filter bags for the Adipic Acid Shaker
and SAON (4)
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STATUTE
AON, AOC
AOD or
SAON!

SUMMARY OF AON, AOC, AOD or
SAON

SUMMARY OF RESPONSE;

SAON (10)

Failure to identify all instances of deviations of
permit requirements during semi-annual reports

Section 5.A.4 of Hercules’ Title V Permit does not
require semi-annual reporting of all instances of
deviations of permit requirements; rather, Section
5.A.4 merely requires semi-annual reporting of
required monitoring and deviations from such
monitoring

Hercules timely submitted its semi-annual
monitoring report in accordance with the Permit

CAA - AOC
5(14)

Visual emissions in excess of 40% opacity

The emission was not regulated because it was
steam

RCRA - SAON
10(a)

Failure to close one container holding
hazardous waste in laboratory No. 1

Hercules trains its employees on the importance of
closing containers holding hazardous waste

RCRA - SAON
10(b)

Failure to label a container with words “Used
oil”

Hercules’ primary used oil storage container is
clearly marked “Used Oil”

The drum observed by EPA was in use for less
than a week at the time of Inspection

Hercules conducted proper training and will
continue to remind employees of the necessity to
label or mark above ground storage tanks and
containers properly

RCRA - SAON
10(c)

Failure to obtain the date and handwritten
signature of the initial transporter on a Manifest

This was due to an error by the transporter and the
Hercules operator handling the shipment records

No other errors were made in three years of
Manifests

RCRA - SAON
10(d)

Failure to inspect containers holding hazardous
waste on a weekly basis for leaks, corrosion,
deterioration, and maintain a written log of the
inspections

Hercules has a history of consistently performing
weekly inspections and maintaining a written log

Hercules has implemented a procedure by which
the hazardous waste log will be kept in a weather
resistant box located near the containers

After the Inspection, Hercules wrote and
implemented a formal procedure to ensure that
weekly inspections and logs are completed in the
event of employee absence

CWA - AOD(1)

Failure to use proper procedure with regard to
the pH probe

Hercules provides its employees with information
regarding the proper analytical techniques to use
with regard to the pH probe

The improper action was due to operator error

Operator has used proper analytical technique
since the Inspection
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CWA AOC(l)

Fallure to have both oil skxmmers in service at

Two 011 skunmers are not specifically requlred in

procedures in the event of main power
interruption at the plant

the time of Inspection the POTW Permit
CWA - AOC(2) | Failure to have backup power or shut down Although not formally documented, Hercules had

a procedure in place for backup power or shut
down in the event of main power interruption

After the Inspection, Hercules formally
documented its procedure for backup power or
shut down

098096/242211.02







I CLEAN AIR ACT

O A. HON Wastewater - Area of Concern No. 1

EPA’s September 21, 1999 Clean Air Act Compliance Inspection Report (the “CAA
Report”) suggests that Hercules check with Zeon to determine whether Zeon is sending HON
wastewater to Hercules® water treatment plant. After EPA’s investigation, Hercules contacted
Zeon, and Zeon verified orally and in writing that it was not sending HON wastewater to
Hercules’ water treatment facility. See Exhibit 1.

B. Notification of Unused Emission Points - Areas of Concern Nos. 2 and 3

In the CAA Report, EPA recommends that Hercules notify MDEQ that it has removed
Emission Point AD003 and that the Air Emission Point for the Wastewater Furnace is no longer
in use. Per EPA’s suggestion, Hercules reported to MDEQ that the Nuephor Process Storage
Tank, Emission Point AD003, was removed. See Exhibit 2. Unlike Emission Point AD003,
Hercules reserves the right to resume operation of the Air Emission Point for the Wastewater
Furnace; thus, at this time, Hercules prefers to maintain the Air Emission Point for the

Wastewater Furnace as part of its Title V Permit.

C. Visual Inspection - Area of Concern No. 4 and Areas of Non-Compliance
Nos. 6 and 7

EPA alleges that, during the week of April 14, 1999, Hercules failed to perform the
required weekly visual inspection of an agitator and three pumps. EPA’s conclusion is in error.
It is possible that a conversation with Hercules’ Environmental Coordinator, Charlie Jordan, may
have caused the Inspector to believe that the Kymene area supervisor may not have performed
the visual inspection during the week of April 14, 1999 because the area supervisor was absent

from work during that time. However, a review of the Inspection Log, attached hereto as
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Exhibit 3, reveals that the above-mentioned visual inspections were performed by two of the
Kymene Operators. See Exhibit 3, p. 4.

D. CFC Maintenance and Recordkeeping Issu.es - Area of Concern No. 5; Area
of Non-Compliance No. 16; and Area of Non-Compliance No. 9 Alleged by
MDEQ

The CAA Report and MDEQ Clean Air Act Compliance Evaluation Inspection Report
(the “MDEQ Report™) claim that Hercules failed to keep service records documenting the date
and type of refrigerant service, as well as the quantity of refrigerant added to its six appliances
with refrigerant charges greater than fifty pounds. After the Inspection, Hercules implemented a
system to keep on site records of repair work performed on the chillers and freon additions,
including the amount of freon used in the repair. See Exhibit 4. In addition, Hercules is in the
process of implementing a comprehensive CFC Program, which includes follow-up monitoring
procedures. See Exhibit 5. Hercules has trained its relevant employees on the CFC Program to
eliminate EPA’s issues regarding Hercules’ CFC Maintenance and Recordkeeping in
Hattiesburg. See Exhibit 5, p. 1.

E. Repair and Documentation of Agitator Leak Repair in January 1999 - Areas
of Concern Nos. 6 and 7: Areas of Non-Compliance Nos. 8. 9 and 10; and

Area of Non-Compliance Nos. 5 and 6 Alleged by MDEQ
Area of Concern No. 6, Areas of Non-Compliance Nos. 8 and 9, and State Area of Non-

Compliance No. 5 allege that Hercules violated 40 C.F.R. § 63.173(c)(1) by failing to repair a
leak on a regulated Reactor within the requisite fifteen-day period. Area of Non-Compliance No.
10 and State Area of Non-Compliance No. 6 claim that Hercules violated 40 C.F.R. § 63.181(d)
by failing to maintain records of the repair. Upon investigation, the best information available
revealed that Hercules did not violate either Section 63.173(c)(1) or Section 63.181(d) because

the January leak occurred on a non-regulated Reactor. After the CAA Inspection, Hercules
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discussed the above-mentioned Areas of Concern and Areas of Non-Compliance with relevant
personnel. The two Kymene Operators who checked the box indicating a “leak,” were separately
interviewed. Both men stated that they do not recall a leak in the regulated 401 Reactor and
believe that they inadvertently checked the wrong box. As Mr. Page’s memorandum indicates,
he mistakenly checked the box for the regulated 401 Reactor unit when, in fact, the non-regulated
100 Reactor unit was leaking. See Exhibit 6, p. 1. In addition, the pump mechanic for the
Hattiesburg plant verbally confirmed in a discussion with Hercules’ Environmental Coordinator
that repairs were not made to the agitator on the 401 Reactor during the relevant time. See
Exhibit 6, p. 2.

Independent tests of the 401 Reactor by Eco-Systems, Inc. (“Eco”) in January and
February 1999 substantiate that the 401 Reactor was not leaking. See Exhibit 7. If the 401
Reactor had been leaking and left unrepaired, Eco’s test would have revealed a leak in either
January or February 1999, or both. Notably, Eco did not detect a leak in the 401 Reactor. The
clerical error of the two Kymene Operators did not result in any unwanted emission or cause any
harm to the environment.

Hercules has reminded its employees of the significance of maintaining records free from
clerical errors. Moreover, Hercules provided follow-up instruction on the importance of
correctly documenting a leak, identifying its existence, repairing the leak in accordance with the
regulations, and re-testing the equipment within the requisite period. In an effort to prevent
future clerical errors, Hercules added a second verification column to its Weekly Visual Pump
and Agitator Inspection Records. The second column requires an additional operator to confirm

whether the inspected equipment is leaking.
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Area of Concern No. 7 claims that Hercules does not have a written work order or
maintenance request system to document leaks, attempts at repair or re-monitoring in the
Kymene Unit. At the time of the Inspection, Hercules used, and continues to use, a series of log
books to document leaks and attempts at repair. Specifically, if an operator notes a leak in the
Kymene Area, he documents the leak in the Operations Log Book, as well as in the Title V
Maintenance Log. Thereafter, Maintenance is informed of the leak, and the appropriate
mechanic is contacted. After the mechanic repairs the leak within the requisite time, the repair is
documented in the Area II Shop Log. The Environmental Coordinator is notified of any
regulated leaks and is responsible for ensuring that timely re-monitoring is performed.

To demonstrate Hercules’ commitment to compliance, after the Inspection, Hercules
implemented an additional maintenance request system to further ensure and document that
Hercules is in compliance with the Leak Detection and Repair (“LDAR”) regulations. Hercules’
new system uses a Microsoft Access database to document work orders and attempts at repairs.
Hercules is continuing to train its employees on the Access system and plans to begin

implementing a new Systems Applications Products (“SAP”) electronic database later this year.

F. Repair and Requirement to Re-Monitor Connector Tag Number 0022.00 -
Area of Concern No. 8; Area of Non-Compliance No. 2; and Area of Non-
Compliance No. 1 Alleged by MDEQ

The CAA Report and MDEQ Report state that Connector Tag Number 0022.00 was
identified with a leak on January 14, 1999. The Agencies claim that the leak was not repaired
and re-monitored within the requisite fifteen-day period. Exhibit 8, attached hereto, verifies that
Hercules repaired the leaking flange, Connector Tag Number 0022.00, on January 15, 1999,
within the requisite fifteen-day period. See Exhibit 8. Although the flange was not re-tested

during the fifteen-day period, Eco confirmed that it was not leaking during a routine inspection
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on February 25, 1999. See Exhibit 9. Hercules did not perform any additional repairs on the
flange from January 15, 1999 until Eco’s test on February 25, 1999. Therefore, any re-test on or
before the statutory fifteen-day period would have demonstrated that the new flange was not
leaking, consistent with Eco’s conclusions during its February 25, 1999 test. Hercules
recognizes and accepts the fifteen-day repair and re-monitoring requirement.

G. LDAR Calibrations Performed by Eco-Systems. Inc. - Area of Concern No.

9; Areas of Non-Compliance Nos. 1, 3, 4 and 5; and Area of Non-Compliance
Nos. 2 and 3 Alleged by MDEQ

Area of Concemn No. 9 requests that Hercules verify that the correct leak rate for pumps at

its facility is 5,000 pbm. Area of Non-Compliance No. 3 and State Area of Non-Compliance
No. 2 allege that Eco failed to perform calibrations on the LDAR monitoring instrument on
February 25, 1999. Areas of Non-Compliance Nos. 1, 4 and 5 and State Area of Non-
Compliance No. 3 claim that Eco used an inappropriate concentration of calibration gases for the
monitoring it performed for Hercules on January 14, 1999, March 25, 1999 and April 14, 1999.
First, Hercules confirms that currently 5,000 ppm is the appropriate “leak’ definition for
Hattiesburg’s pumps. See Exhibit 10. Second, although Eco did not calibrate its instruments
immediately before use on February 25, 1999, Bocage Specialty Company performed
calibrations on the instrument approximately forty-eight hours before Eco performed the LDAR
monitoring at Hercules. See Exhibit 11. Third, Eco used an appropriate concentration of
calibration gas for the monitoring performed on January 14, 1999. On January 14, 1999, Eco
calibrated at a concentration of zero and 10,000 ppm. In January 1999, Hercules was in Phase I,
which requires an entity to screen all regulated equipment using “a mixture of methane or other
compounds . . . at a concentration of approximately, but less than, 10,000 parts per million.” 40

C.F.R. § 63.180(b)(4)(ii))(A). Under C.F.R. § 63.180(b)(4)(ii)(A), the calibration instrument may
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be calibrated “at a higher methane concentration than the concentration specified for that piece of
equipment” so long as the concentration of calibration gas does not exceed the concentration
specified as a leak by more than 2,000 ppm. Thus, Eco’s calibration in January 1999 was correct
under the regulations.

Hercules began Phase IT on March 8, 1999. In March and April 1999, Eco calibrated at
zero, 95 ppm and 980 ppm. See Exhibit 12. Although the concentration was less than the
regulatory requirement, March and April 1999 monitoring detected 0.0 ppm at the screened
equipment. See Exhibit 12. Therefore, Eco’s decision to calibrate using a concentration of zero,
95 ppm and 980 ppm did not result in an undetected leak nor did the calibrations cause any harm
to the environment.

During the 1999 calendar year, Hercules relied on Eco to implement the LDAR program
for the Epichlorohydrin (“Epi”) process in compliance with all applicable regulations. In
response to the issues that EPA alleged regarding Eco’s leak detection procedures, Hercules
terminated its relationship with Eco. Thereafter, Hercules retained Fugitive Compliance
Corporation (“FCC”) as its new contractor. See Exhibit 13.

H. Open-Ended Line - Areas of Concern Nos. 10 through 12: Areas of Non-
Compliance Nos. 11 through 15; and Areas of Non-Compliance Nos. 7 and 8

Alleged by MDEQ
In Area of Concern No. 10; Area of Non-Compliance No. 11; and State Area of Non-

Compliance No. 7, the Agencies claim that they identified an open-ended line in connection with
the defoamer charging equipment on the 401 Reactor. Notably, the defoamer charging
equipment on the 401 Reactor has two valves. See Exhibit 14, attaching a diagram prepared by
Charlie Jordan, Hercules’ Environmental Coordinator. The first valve has one side of the valve

seat in contact with the process; however, the first valve does not have the other side open to the
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atmosphere, either directly or through open piping. The second valve, which remains closed
while the first valve is in the open position, prevents venting to the atmosphere. Therefore, the
open valve on the 401 Reactor does not fall within the definition of “open-ended line or valve”
set forth in 40 C.F.R. § 63.161 (defining an open-ended line as “any valve, except pressure relief
valves, having one side of the valve seat in contact with the process fluid and one side open to
the atmosphere, either directly or through open piping.”).

Even if we were to assume that the open valve constituted an open-ended valve under the
definition set forth in 40 C.F.R. § 63.161, Hercules complied with Sections 63.167(a)(2) and
63.167(b). The second valve satisfies the requirement of Section 63.167(a)(2) because the
second valve “seal[s] the open end at all times except during operations requiring process fluid
flow through the open-ended valve or line, or during maintenance or repair.” See 40 C.F.R.

§ 63.167(a)(2).

Moreover, the valve system on the defoamer unit is in compliance with Section
63.167(b). Specifically, Section 63.167(b) requires that “[e]ach open-ended valve or line
equipped with a second valve shall be operated in a manner such that the valve on the process
fluid end is closed before the second valve is opened.” When an operator adds defoamer to the
reactor vessel, the operator closes the first valve on the process fluid end, and thereafter, opens
the second valve. While opening the second valve, the operator places a jar of defoamer above
the second valve. After the defoamer drains out of the jar into the small chamber between the
two valves, the second valve is closed and the first valve is opened. Thus, Hercules complies
with the requirements of Section 63.167(b).

Using the procedure described above, Hercules emissions, if any, are de minimis because

only the vapor trapped between the first valve and the second valve will escape into the
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atmosphere. Although the valve at issue fails to meet the definition of open-ended line under
Section 63.161, Hercules purchased and installed two spring-loaded valves to ensure that both
valves remain closed at all times unless an employee is in the process of adding defoamer to the
401 Reactor.

Areas of Concern Nos. 11 and 12, Areas of Non-Compliance Nos. 12, 13, 14 and 15, and
State Area of Non-Compliance No. 8 allege that Hercules violated 40 C.F.R. §§ 63.167(a)(1),
63.168(b), and 63.162(c). However, the Sample Port identified in Area of Concern No. 11,
Areas of Non-Compliance 12, 13 and 14, and State Area of Non-Compliance No. 8 is exempt
from complying with Subparts H and W because the equipment is in HAP service less than 300
hours per calendar year. See 40 C.F.R. § 63.162(¢). See Exhibit 15. In 1999, the 401
Recirculating Loop, Mix Cooler and Sample Port were in HAP service 168 hours. See Exhibit
15.

Although the equipment is exempt, as depicted in Exhibit 16, Hercules added a plug to
the Sample Port as recommended by EPA. Similarly, Hercules added a plug to the open-ended

line near the pump, Tag Number 0010.00. See Exhibit 17.

I. On-Site Replacement Filter Bags for the Adipic Acid Shaker - Area of
Concern No. 13, Area of Non-Compliance No. 17, and Area of Non-

Compliance No. 4 Alleged by MDEQ

The CAA Report and MDEQ Report claim that there were no on-site replacement filter

bags for the Adipic Acid Shaker filter. After the Inspections, Hercules ordered replacement filter

bags for the Adipic Acid Shaker. See Exhibit 18. Currently, the filter bags are retained on-site.
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J. Identification of Permit Deviations - Area of Non-Compliance No. 10 Alleged

by MDEQ
In the MDEQ Report, the Agency alleges failure to clearly identify all deviations from

permit requirements in semi-annual reports required by Section 5.A.4 of the facility’s Title V
Permit to operate. Section 5.A.4 is not the annual compliance certification provision for all
terms and conditions of the Permit and does not require identification of all deviations from
permit requirements. Annual compliance certification is governed by Section 4 of the Permit,
and Hercules will be filing its certification for 1999 on January 31, 2000.

Section 5.A.4 requires semi-annual reporting of required monitoring and deviations from
such monitoring. On July 23, 1999, prior to the Permit deadline of July 31, 1999, Hercules
submitted the required semi-annual monitoring report specified by the Permit. The report was
properly certified by a responsible corporate official. Section 5.A.4 does not require the
reporting of non-compliance with permit terms other than those associated with the required
monitoring addressed in the semi-annual report. In its semi-annual report, Hercules provided the
information specified in the Permit with regard to fuel and product usage for the various units for
which monitoring is required under Section 5. In addition, at the time the report was filed,
Hercules relied on the report of its LDAR contractor, Eco, with regard to LDAR monitoring
requirements. The specific concerns EPA and MDEQ have with regard to Hercules’ LDAR
program are addressed elsewhere in this Response. See supra Sections B and E-H.

K. Visual Emissions in Excess of 40% Opacity During RCRA Inspection - Area
of Concern No. 14

In the CAA Report, EPA claims that a visual emission in excess of 40% opacity was

observed during the RCRA portion of the Inspection. The visual emission observed during the

098096/242211.02 1-9
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RCRA Inspection on June 30, 1999' was steam emanating from a rosin line. After rosin flows
through a line at Hercules, operators attach a steam blow-out to the line. Thereafter, steam
pressure is used to clear the line. Thus, the observation noted in the CAA Report was caused by
uncombined water droplets. See Exhibit 19, attaching Title V Permit 3.A.2. Hercules’ Title V
Permit states that:

[T]he permittee shall not cause, allow, or permit the discharge into

the ambient air from any point source or emissions, any air

contaminant of such opacity as to obscure an observer’s view to a

degree in excess of 40% opacity . . . [t]his shall not apply to
vision obscuration caused by uncombined water droplets.

(Emphasis added). Thus, as provided in the Permit, such steam cannot be a basis for an opacity

violation.

' The CAA Report does not confirm that the observation was made by a certified smoke reader.

098096/242211.02 I-10






_ August 8, 1999

Charles Jordan
Hercules, Inc.

613 West 7% Street
' Hattiesburg, MS 39401

( H [ M1 ALS Re:  Applicable Air Regulations for Zeon Chemicals Wastewater

INCORPORATED Dear Mr. Jordan:

1301 W. SEVENTH STREET Emissions from wastewater at Zeon Chemicals is covered under 40 CFR 63
HATTIESBURG, MISSISSIPPl -~ Subpart U, Polymer & Resins Group 1 (MACT standard). The wastewater from
39401-2800  our plant is classified as Group 2 under this standard. 40 CFR 63 Subpart U is not
PHONE 601/583-6020 included under the HON Rule.

FkY,601/383-6032 The only HON Rule subpart that applies to our facility is 40 CFR 63 Subpart H

(LDAR). This subpart does not apply to our wastewater.

Sincerely,

David J. JCDW

Process Engineer

Pc: Ron Tarlton, Zeon Chemicals
Bob Barlow, Zeon Chemicals
W.G. Miller, Zeon Chemicals
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p 601 5B4 3226
© WHERCULES o oo
s Hattiesburg, MS 39403
(601) 545-3450

Fax: (601) 584-3226
www.herc.com

January 4, 2000

CERTIFIED MAIL — RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED
Cert. # 12 443 543 577

Ear]l Mahaffey

Environynental Compliance and Enforcement Division
Office of Pollution Control

P.O.Box 10385

Jackson, Ms 39289-0385

RE: Permit # 0800-00001, Emission Unit # AD 003
(Storage tank NT-180).

Part 70 Flexibility Notifications
O Operational Flexibility Changes (502(b)(10), trading under
"~ SIP emissions cap, trading under a permit allowable cap).

Dear Mi1. Mahaffey:

T 1e facility has completed the following change, pursuant to APC-S-6,
Section 4, (F).

1’ Brief description of the change.
The existing tank and associated equipment has been demolished and is
no longer in service.

2)) Change in emissions as a result of the change.
Any emissions have been reduced to zero.

3) Any permit term or condition that is no longer applicable as a result of the -

change.
Emission point AD-003 no longer exists.

——— e —— -~ - ams 4aM Ll ]



01/06/00 . THU 13:13 FAX 601 584 3226 HERCULES INC.

©

g| 003
601 584 3226

Mr. Earl Mahaffey
January «, 2000
Page2

This change does not constitute a Title I modification and does not exceed
the allovrable emission rate. This change does not violate applicable requirements
or contravene federally enforceable permit terms and conditions that are
monitoring, recordkeeping, reporting or compliance certification requirements.

Bused on information and belief formed after reasonable inquiry, the
statements and information in the document are true, accurate, and complete.

Sincerely,
Responsible Official for Title V

alter D. Langhans, Plant Manager

WDL/vxf

cc: U.S.EPARegion4
Operating Source Section
Air and Radiation Technology Branch
Atlanta Federal Center
100 Alabama Street S. W.
Atlanta, Georgia 30303

LS T T T A TAN c 12:102PM






KYMENE® PLANT -- HATTIESBURG, MS

HERCULES INCORPORATED

WEEKLY VISUAL PUMP & AGITATOR INSPECTION

(EPICHLOROHYDRIN)

LEAK DETECTION AND REPAIR FOR EPICHLOROHYDRIN

*** Three drips per minute from pump seal determines a leak.

*** Agitator leaks are by visual dripping, audible, or olfactory.

(MAXIMUM AVAILABLE CONTROL TECHNOLOGY)

*** For leaks - contact ECO Systems, at 601-936-4440, to report leak.
*** Retain all recorded documentation a minimum of 5 years.

DATE TRUCK UNLOADING STATION REACTOR 401
PUMP - 110 PUMP - 460 PUMP 401 AGITATOR 401
WEEK OF Leaking | NoLeak | Leaking | No Leak Leaking | No Leak | Leaking | No Leak | Initials
Ghs|sa v — L— — kR
| .
0N -% L & L ' V.4
kymepiwk.wpd / 9/99
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HERCULES INCORPORATED

KYMENE® PLANT - HATTIESBURG, MS

WEEKLY VISUAL PUMP & AGITATOR INSPECTION

(EPICHLOROHYDRIN)

LEAK DETECTION AND REPAIR FOR EPICHLOROHYDRIN

~

*** Three drips per minute from pump seal determines a leak.
*** Agitator leaks are by visual drippin
! *x% For leaking seal contact Team, Inc.
*%* Retain all recorded documentation a minimum of 5 years.

g, audible, or olfactory.
At 504-673-9200 to report leak.

// (MAXIMUM AVAILABLE CONTROL TECHNOLOGY)

DATE TRUCK UNLOADING STATION REACTOR 401

¢ _PUMP - 110 PUMP - 400 PUMP 401 AGITATOR 401
WEBK OF | Leaking | NoLeak | Leaking | NoLeak | Leaking | NoLeak | Leaking | MoLeak Initials
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KYMENE® PLANT -- HATTIESBURG, MS

HERCULES INCORPORATED

WEEKLY VISUAL PUMP & AGITATOR INSPECTION

(EPICHLOROHYDRIN)

LEAK DETECTION AND REPAIR FOR EPICHLOROHYDRIN

(MAXIMUM AVAILABLE CONTROL TECHNOLOGY)

**+* Three drips per minute from pump seal determines a leak.
% Aoitator leaks are by visual dripping, audible, or olfactory.

*** For leaking seal contact Team, Inc. At 504-673-9200 to report leak.

*#** Retain all recorded documentation a minimum of 5 years.

DATE TRUCK UNLOAD[NC STATION REACTOR 401
PUMP - 110 PUMP - 400 PUMP 401 AGITATOR 401
WEEK OF Leaking No Leak Leaking | No Leak Leaking | No Leak Leaking | No Leak | Initials
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KYMENE® PLANT -- HATTIESBURG, MS

HERCULES INCORPORATED

WEEKLY VISUAL PUMP & AGITATOR INSPECTION

(EPICHLOROHYDRIN)

LEAK DETECTION AND REPAIR FOR EPICHLOROHYDRIN

(MAXIMUM AVAILABLE CONTROL TECHNOLOGY)

*** Three drips per minute from pump seal determines a leak.

*** Agitator leaks are by visual dripping,
*** For leaking seal contact Team, Inc. At 504-

audible, or olfactory.
673-9200 to report leak.

*%* Retain all recorded documentation a minimum of 5 years.

DATE TRUCK UNLOADING STATION REACTOR 401
/C/ qq PUMP- 110 PUMP - 400 PUMP 401 AGITATOR 401
WEEK OF | Leaking | NoLeak | Leaking | NoLeak | Leaking | NoLeak Leaking | No Leak | Initials
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HERCULES INCORPORATED

KYMENE® PLANT -- HATTIESBURG, MS

WEEKLY VISUAL PUMP & AGITATOR INSPECTION

(EPICHLOROHYDRIN)

LEAK DETECTION AND REPAIR FOR EPICHLOROHYDRIN
(MAXIMUM AVAILABLE CONTROL TECHNOLOGY)

*** Three drips per minute from pump seal determines a leak.

*** Aoitator leaks are by visual dripping, audible, or olfactory.

*** For leaking seal contact Team, Inc. At 504-673-9200 to report leak.
#%* Retain all recorded documentation a minimum of 5 years.

DATE TRUCK UNLOADING STATION REACTOR 401
PUMP- 110 PUMP - 400 PUMP 401 AGITATOR 401
WEEK OF Leaking No Leak | Leaking | No Leak Leaking | No Leak | Leaking | No Leak | Initials
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HERCULES INCORPORATED

KYMENE® PLANT -- HATTIESBURG, MS

WEEKLY VISUAL PUMP & AGITATOR INSPECTION

(EPICHLOROHYDRIN)

LEAK DETECTION AND REPAIR FOR EPICHLOROHYDRIN
(MAXIMUM AVAILABLE CONTROL TECHNOLOGY)

**+* Three drips per minute from pump seal determines a leak.

*x* Agitator leaks are by visual dripping, audible, or olfactory.

*** For leaking seal contact Team, Inc. At 504-673-9200 to report leak.
*#%* Retain all recorded documentation a minimum of 5 years.

DATE TRUCK UNLOADING STATION REACTOR 401

/9 ?F PUMP - 110 PUMP - 400 PUMP 401 AGITATOR 401

WEEK QF | Leaking | Noleak | Leaking No Leak | Leaking | NoLeak | Leaking | No Leak | Initials
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HERCULES INCORPORATED
KYMENE® PLANT -- HATTIESBURG, MS

&3
WEEKLY VISUAL PUMP-& AGITATOR INSPECTION
(EPICHLOROHYDRIN)

LEAK DETECTION AND REPAIR FOR EPICHLOROHYDRIN
(MAXIMUM AVAILABLE CONTROL TECHNOLOGY)

*** Three drips per minute from pump seal determines a leak.
*** Agitator leaks are by visual dripping, audible, or olfactory.
«*+* For leaking seal contact Team, Inc. At 504-673-9200 to report leak.

#%* Retain all recorded documentation a minimum of 5 years.

DATE TRUCK UNLOADING STATION REACTOR 401
PUMP - 110 PUMP - 400 PUMP 401 AGITATOR 401

WEEK OF Leaking No Leak Leaking | No Leak Leaking | No Leak Leaking No Leak | Initials
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HERCULES INCORPORATED

KYMENE® PLANT -- HATTIESBURG, MS

WEEKLY VISUAL PUMP & AGITATOR INSPECTION

(EPICHLOROHYDRIN)

*** Three drips per minute from pump seal determines a leak.

*x% Agitator leaks are by visual drippin
*** For leaking seal contact Team, Inc.

g, audible, or olfactory.
At 504-673-9200 to report leak.

*** Retain all recorded documentation a minimum of 5 years.

LEAK DETECTION AND REPAIR FOR EPICHLOROHYDRIN
(MAXIMUM AVAILABLE CONTROL TECHNOLOGY)

DATE TRUCK UNLOADING STATION REACTOR 401
PUMP - 110 PUMP - 400 PUMP 401 AGITATOR 401

WEEK OF Leaking No Leak Leaking No Leak | Leaking | No Leak Leaking | No Leak | Initials
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HERCULES INCORPORATED

KYMENE® PLANT -- HATTIESBURG, MS

WEEKLY VISUAL PUMP & AGITATOR INSPECTION

*+* Three drips per minute from pump seal determines a leak.

**x Agitator leaks are by visual dripping, audible, or olfactory.

*+** For |eaking seal contact Team, Inc. At 504-673-9200 to report leak.
%% Retain all recorded documentation a minimum of 5 years.

(EPICHLOROHYDRIN)

LEAK DETECTION AND REPAIR FOR EPICHLOROHYDRIN
(MAXIMUM AVAILABLE CONTROL TECHNOLOGY)

Q

DATE TRUCK UNLOADING STATION REACTOR 401
PUMP-110 PUMP - 400 PUMP 401 AGITATOR 401
WEEK OF Leaking No Leak Leaking No Lcakl Leaking No Leak ) Leaking No Leak Initials_
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HERCULES INCORPORATED
KYMENE PLANT —- HATTIESBURG MS

WEEKLY VISUAL PUMP INSPECTION
(EPICHLOROHYDRIN)

LEAK DETECTION AND REPAIR FOR EPICHLOROHYDRIN
(MAXIMUM AVAILABLE CONTROL TECHNOLOGY)

+x*Three drips per minute from pump seal determines a leak.
«x*+For leaking seal contact Team, Inc. At 1-800-245-9211 to report leak.

##+Retain all recorded documentation a minimum of 3 years.

TRUCK UNLOADING STATION
Date PUMP-110 PUMEP-400
Week of Leaking | No Leak Leaking No Leak Initials
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++*Three drips per minute from pump seal dete
++*For leaking seal contact Team, Inc. At 1-800

LEAK DETECTION AND REPAIR FOR EPICHLOROHYDRIN

HERCULES INCORPORATED
KYMENE PLANT — HATTIESBURG MS

WEEKLY VISUAL PUMP INSPECTION
(EPICHLOROHYDRIN)

(MAXIMUM AVAILABLE CONTROL TECHNOLOGY)

rmines a leak.

++*Retain all recorded documentation a minimum of 3 years.

-245-9211 to report leak.

TRUCK UNLOADING STATION
Date PUMP-110 PUMP-400
Week of Leaking | No Leak Leaking | No Leak ;1 Initials
EYER D) S — |
2/9/9% — — |4
2 27fS [— (— | B/
43244 v - M
Ve - =T
§ 349§ - | Hin
G306 /9 4 — - )
4/ |95 — — %A,
&/14 59 v — 2.0
H-lo-2F - 7 BN
#/29/9 8 ~ — | aa
5/‘1‘!‘?2 on_ Nexk Skt y

csjml 0685Y

Page 11






i

Refrigerant Usage Log 1999

Equipment : Correctlve Refrlg. | Amt.Used] Ref.Chg.
Date Area Number Problem Action Type. Lbs.igz. Cap.Lbs| Initials Comments
07/09/99|RAD E.O, (80056 [Leaking valve Tightened packing R22 13lbs 10z | 30 Ibs AER
07/09/99|HRA C/R £00384 |Possible internal leak  |Checked for leaks R22 100z 3.8 lbs No leaks found
in water cooled coil AER |possibly internal.
07/09/99|West office £00300 |Not operating Checked for leaks R22 6lbs 50z { 401Ibs AER [No leaks found
' North comp
[ 07/24/99]|HRA C/IR {00384 |Possible internal leak Checked for leaks R22 1002 3.8 lbs
I in water cooled coil AER |No leaks found
| 07/26/99{Mid office £,00301 |Cooling tower down Reset breaker R22 4lbs 120z | 11 Ibs AER |Optimized East&8West
! 11 Ibs compressors
08/09/99|HRA C/R £00384 |Compressor would Check for leaks R22 7oz 3.8 Ibs RA  |No leaks found
not run none found possibly internal.
08/10/99|Poly Pale (180059 |Broken weld joint Repaired weld R22 24lbs3oz | 25 Ibs AER
Vandorn #1
08/10/99{Poly Pale (180060 |Leaking valve Replaced value R22 23lbs 90z | 251bs AER
Vandom#2
08/20/99|Paracol 1180042 |Leaking value & gauges |Replaced value & R22 90Ibs 150 Ibs | RA&KT
Patterson plugged gauge taps
08/31/99|Poly Pale 180059 |Flex joint broken Replaced flex joint R22 27Ibs 1oz | 25lbs | RA&KT
Vandorn
09/24/99{HRA C/R 100384 |Compressor would Checked for leaks R22 8oz 3.8 Ibs AER | No leaks found
not run none found possibly internal.
0/11/99|West office 100300 |Packing leaking on Repaired packing R22 18lbs 40 lbs RA
) South com value
—10/20/99]Rad E. O. 1)80056 |[Compressor cycling Searched for leaks R22 23lbs 40z | 30Ibs AER [Suspect oil system

none found

O

P:\Refrigeration\Riguselog.xls
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Elercules Hattiesburg Refrigerant Maintenance Program Review

Date: Tuesday, January 18, 2000
Conducted by: Rick Hosey, Marlin Taylor
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Hattiesburg M:iintenance Work Instruction STATUS: Not Approved ~ Interim Document
TITLE: Refrigerant I’rogram ISSUED: January 12, 2000
DOCUMENT NUMBER: - REVISION: 0
DOCUMENT REFERENCE: 'OWNER:_Rick Hosey

1.0

Hercules Hattiesburg Refrigerant Maintenance Program

Scope:

The scope of this srogram covers the responsibilities and dutles for the maintenance, disposal and record keeping of
refrigerant containing equipment operated at the Hattiesburg Plant. Specific program elements include.

2.0

Malntenance, Siervice and Charging

Leak Rate Determination and Repair

Appliance Dispsal

Motor Vehicle 4ir Conditioning Malntenance, Service and Charging (not applicable at Hattiesburg)
Specific Appliczible Equipment On Site

Required Docuimentation Forms

Applicable Requirements:

This program has bzen developed to comply with the following requirements:

O

Title V Permit ta Operate
Code of Federal Regulations 40 CFR 82.10 ~ 166

Subpart F — The purpose of this subpart is to reduce emissions of Class | and Class || refrigerants to the lowest
achievable level during the service, maintenance, repalr, and disposal of appliances in accordance with section 608 of
the 1990 Clean Air Act. This subpart also applies to recycling and recovery equipment. The air conditioning systems
on the Hattiesburg Plant are serviced and repaired by plant craftsmen or an outside contractor. The same selected
plant craftsmari or contractor will be responsible for reclaiming, recovering and preparing units for disposal in
accordance with this procedure.

Subpart H — This subpart applies to any person testing, servicing, maintaining, repairing or disposing of halons. The
Hattiesburg Plat has some halon portable fire extinguishers.

Hercules Internial Requirements:

e Hercules Ircorporated EMS Standard conceming the development, documentation and maintenance of this
program, bi2nnial responsibility refresher and biennial program assessment.

» Hercules Environmental Records Retention / Destruction Guidelines concemning the retention and destruction of
records anc documentation associated with this program.
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O3.0 Facility BBest Management Practices:

The Hattiesburg Pliant has implemented the following Best Management Practices (BMP):

Recycling and ‘ecovery practices are to be activated with all refrigerant-containing appliances, and intentional venting
of refrigerant tc the atmosphere is prohibited at all times. Only the refrigeration units containing more than 50 pounds
of refrigerant p2r individual circuit are required to conduct leak rate determinations and both initial and follow-up leak
inspections.

The required tiine frame to conduct a follow-up verification test is 30 days. The Hattiesburg Plant has implemented a
14-day time frume to perform a follow-up verification test as to provide enough back-up time to repair any failed
follow-up verlfi:ation test. The same logic is to be implemented of any unit requiring a process unit shutdown for
repairs. The required time frame to repair a refrigerant-containing unit that requires a process shutdown is 120 days.
The Hattiesbunj plant has implemented a 100 day time frame to conduct the required repairs.

4.0 Terms, Lefinitions and Abbreviations:

Appliance Any device that contains and uses a class | or a class Il substance as a refrigerant and is used for
household, commercial, or industrial purposes, including any air conditioner, refrigerator, chiller or
freezer. Essentially any sort of cooling equipment that uses a class | or a class Il substance as a
refrigerant is an appliance.

CFC Chlorofiuorocarbon or Refrigerant

Class | Refrigerant A complete listing of Class | substances can be found at 40 CFR 82 Subpart A. Appendix A.

OCIass Il Refrigerant A complete listing of Class | substances can be found at 40 CFR 82 Subpart A. Appendix B.

Follow-up Verification Those tests that involve checking the repairs within 30 days of returning the system to normal

operating characteristics or condition. Follow-up verification tests for equipment from which the
refrigerants charge has been evacuated means a test conducted after system or portion of the
system has resumed operation at normal operating characteristics or conditions of temperature
and pressure, except In cases where sound professional judgement dictates that these tests will
be more meaningful if performed prior to the return to normal operating characteristics and
conditions. A follow-up verification test for a system that has not been evacuated means a re-
verification test conducted after the inltial verification test and usually within 30 days of normal
operating conditions. Where a system is not evacuated, it is only necessary to conclude any
required changes in pressure, temperature, or other conditions to return the system to normal
operating conditions.

Full Charge The amount of refrigerant required for normal operating characteristics or conditions of industrial

process refrigeration systems as determined by using one or a combination of the following 4
methods:

Using the systems manufacturer's determination of the correct full charge for the system.
Determining the full charge by appropriate calculations based on component sizes, density of
refrigerant, volume of piping and all other relevant considerations.

» Using actual measurements of the amount of refrigerant added or evacuated from a
refrigeration system.

» Using an established range based on the best available data, regarding the normal operating
characteristics and conditions for the system, where the midpoint of the range will serve as
the full charge and where records are maintained in accordance with 40 CFR 82.166(q).

Qrocess Shutdown A process or fécility temporarily ceases to operate or manufacture whatever is belng produced at

the facility.
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Initial Verification T2st Those leak tests that are conducted as soon as practicable after the repair is completed. If the
system or isolated portion is evacuated, it means a test conducted prior to replacing of the full
charge and before the system or portion of the system has reached operation at normal operating

characteristics or conditions of temperature and pressure. An Initial verification test conducted

without the evacuation of the refri

after the completion of the repair work.

MVAC

Normal Operating
Characteristics

Motor vehicle alr conditioning systems.

operation of the refrigeration system.

Opening

gerant charge means a test is conducted as soon as practicable

Temperatures, pressures, fiuid flows, speeds, and other characteristics that would normally be
expected for a given process load and ambient condition during operation.
characteristics or conditions are marked by the absence of abnormal condit

Normal operating
ions affecting the

Any service, maintenance, or repair on an appliance that would release Class | or Class Il

refrigerant from the appliance to the atmosphere unless the refrigerant were recovered previously

from the appliance. Connecting and disconnectin
to measure pressures within the a
the appliance shall not be considered opening.

Reclaim refrigerant

g hoses and gauges to and from the appliance
ppliance and to add refrigerant to or recover refrigerant from

Reprocess refrigerant to at least the purity specified In appendix A of 40 CFR part 82, subpart F

(based on ARI Standard 700-1993, Specifications for Fluorocarbon and other refrigerants) and to
verify the purity using the analytical methods presented in Appendix A.

Recover refrigerant

processing it in any way.

Technlcian

To remove refrigerant in any condition from an appliance without necessarily testing or

The parts of an appliance that are nommally connected to each other (or separated only by
Internal valves) and are designed to contain refrigerant.

Any person who performs maintenance, service or repair that could reasonably be expected to

release class | or class Il refrigerants from appliances, except MVACs and MVAC like appliances.
Techniclans include but are not limited to installers, contractor employees, and plant E & |

craftsmen.

5.0 Required Documentation:

Documentation Requirement Who and Where How Long
All maintenance, service, refrigerant Outside contractor All repairs are to documented on
additions, refrigerant rec svered, refrigerant Or plant craftsmen Form CFC 1

reclaimed, and repalrs a-e to be
documented and issued on the day in which
the repalr work Is compliuted. Hercules
Incorporated has an attached form to be
completed for each job, CFC-1

The documents are to be kept on file
and available for inspection for 5
years

All documents issued by the outside
contractor, or plant E & | craftsmen, are to
be filed in a manner suit:ible for inspection

E&! Supervisor's Office
And E&l Shop

The documents are to be kept on file
and available for Inspection for 5
years

All % leak rates are to bi calcuiated
immediately foliowing th) addition of

Outside contractor, or plant E &1
craftsmen are to document leak rate %

Untii procedure changes

refrigerant to any refrige ant-containing on Form CFC 1

appliance on the Hatties jurg site.

All refrigerant removed f 'om the Hattlesburg E&I Supervisor Untli approved changes have been
And made with this guideline

site must be documente:! and approved
before leaving the facility', .

Environmental Coordinator

C

Ali terminated refrigeran -contalning
ppilances must be evacuated and labeled
n accordance with the niquirements of this
procedure.

Outside contractor, or piant E&I
craftsmen are to document disposal of
equlpment on Form CFC 2

Until approved changes have been
made with this guidelinre

Ali routine and non-routiite maintenance,
service, disposal, refrigerant additions or
recovery work must be racorded in the
Hattiesburg Piant Refrigsrant Use Log or
Refrigeration Unit/Appliance Log
_spreadsheets on networ < drive “P°".

Piant E&! craftsmen
E & | Specialist

5 years
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A record of all refrigerant-containing items Outside contractor and plant E&I 5 years
designated for disposal s required to be craftsmen, are to document disposai

_/documented. of equipment on Form CFC 2
A record of all pounds o' refrigerant SAP Computer System 5 Years
purchased and acceptet| on the Hattiesburg
site.
Al certifications of technicians that will be E&l Shop 5 Years
conducting refrigerant re lated service and and/or
repalr work on the Hattie sburg site are to be H/R File
kept on file.
An up to date inventory f all refrigerant- E&! Specialist Continuous
containing equipment will be maintained on and
site in the Plant CFC Containing Equipment E&! craftsmen
inventory Log Spreadsh :et on network
drive "P". :
6.0 Requirec Training:

[ Training Requiren ient Who and Where How Often

An acceptable certlied program
that is acknowledged by the

All personnel required to
handle CFC related equipment

Prior to any Plant CFC
related maintenance

responsibilities associated with
this program

regulatory authority assignment
Responsibility refre:sher Anyone with servicing Every 5 Years

07.0 Associated support tools, checklist and work instructions:

1) Refrigerant Use Log spreadsheet developed in-house

2) Refrigeration Uit/Appliance Disposal Log spreadsheet developed in-house

3) Plant CFC Conaining Equipment Inventory Log spreadsheet developed in-house

4) Form CFC 1 and Form CFC 2

8.0 Procedures:

Refrigerant Maintenance, Service and Charging Procedure:

No Hercules empliyee or contractor is to perform any maintenance or repairs to refrigerant containing
appliances without being certified.

Action When Who How
(additional info)
Acquire copies of all certifications of Before technician E&| Supervisor  From selected outside
technicians conducting refrigerant related  performs any contractor and plant
services on the Hiittiesburg Plant. refrigerant related E&l craftsmen
maintenance on site
Generate work orler for CFC-containing  Whenever E&l group
equipment requilriig service. equipment requires  Maintenance
servicing, Supervisors and
O malntenance or Operating
repairs personnel.

Anyone noticing
requirement.




Oie

back into the systern.

Dye and Black Light Test
Infrared Test
Near Infrared Test

Follow-up verificalion to insure repaired

equipment is leak free

Within 14 days from
the date the equipment
was initially repalred.

Selected
contractor or
plant E&I
craftsmen

Soap Bubble Test
Electronic Leak detectors
Ultrasonic leak detector
Pressure Test

Vacuum Test

Dye and Black Light Test
Infrared Test

Near Infrared Test
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frigerant Ma: ntenance, Service and Charging Procedure cont:
Conduct maintenzince, service or repair As designated by Selected In accordance with this
work on selected »quipment and provide  the E&l Maintenance contractor or procedure.
documented service Form CFC1. Supervisor plant E&Il
craftsmen
Acquire completei{ setvice report for On the day the work  E&I craftsman,  The selected contractor
each refrigerant u it in which work was was performed contractors, E&l Is to provide a hard
performed Specialist copy of work performed
to both departments
Input repair data iito the network On the day the work  E&I craftsmen, Manually inputting data
spreadsheet log (1Jrive “P”). was performed E&I Specialist from contractor or E&l
craftsmen service
reports
Conduct internal cjuarterly audits to verify Quarterly due 1730,  Environmental Compare contractor or
all reporting requirements are being met.  4/30, 7/30 and 10/30  Coordinator, plant E&I craftsmen
' of each calendar Facilities service reports,
year Supervisor refrigerant additions and
computer database
records
Refrigerant Lez k Rate Determination and Repair Procedure:
A.ction When Who How (additional info)
Conduct % leak Rate calculation Whenever refrigerant Selected Based on the approved
is added to any CFC-  contractoror  equation in this
containing equipment  plant E&I procedure*
craftsmen
O Determine if leak ate exceeds 35% for Whenever refrigerant Selected Based on the approved
units with full charges over 50 pounds Is added to units with contractoror  equation in this
full charges greater plant E&l procedure
: than 50 pounds craftsmen
Contact Environmental Coordinatorifthe  Same Day service is Selected Hard Copy of report,
leak rate is above 35% for units provided contractoror  phone, E-mail etc.
containing more thian 50 Ib of refrigerant, plant E&l
All other units submit leak rate % with craftsmen
hard copy service report
Locate and repair source of leak ASAP but before 14 Selected Best engineering
days after discovery. If contractoror  judgment to eliminate
a process unit plant E&I CFC emissions
shutdown is required in  craftsmen
order to repair then
100 days is the
allowable time limit
Verify equipment Is leak free Before putting the Selected Soap Bubble Test
selected unit back in contractor or  Electronic Leak detectors
service. If the unit is E&l craftsmen Ultrasonic leak detector
taken off line, or before Pressure Test
refrigerant is added Vacuum Test
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OEefrigerant Le:zk Rate Determination and Repair Procedure cont:
Failed Follow-up verification test ~ Within 30 days from  Selected Soap Bubble Test
(notify enviironmental coordinator  the original repair contractor  Electronic Leak detectors
of failed fcllow-up test on the date or plant Ultrasonic leak detector
same day of service) Repair leak E&I Pressure Test
and initially verify no leaks exist craftsmen  Vacuum Test
as well as perform follow-up Dye and Black Light Test
verification test Infrared Test
Near Infrared Test
After 30 d ays from the original "ASAP E&l Hard Copy, E-mail
repair dat, if leak rates greater craftsmen,
than 35% for units containing E&l
more thar 50 pounds of Specialist
refrigerarr exist notify the or E&l
environmental coordinator. Supervisor
Notify EP:\ of failed follow-up Within 30 days  Environmental  Certified Letter
verification test of failed test Coordinator
Develop ritrofit / retirement plan ~ Within 30 days ~ E&I Supervisor Based upon
for the unit that failed the follow-  of failed test requirements of 40 CFR
up verifice tion test 82.166
Implement and maintain Within 12 E&I Based upon
documentation of retrofit / months of the Supervisorand requirements of 40 CFR
retirement! plan falled testdate  Environmental 82.166
Coordinator

*Approved Leak Rate Calculation
# Ibs refrigerant added

365 days

*Leak Rate % = - x
O # Ibs refrigerant in normal full charge # days since refrigerant last added

Disposal Procedure:

x 100%

Action When Who How
(additional Info)
Any equipment Items containing Before Selected Via EPA approved
refrigerant, that is designated for appliance is contractor or evacuation equipment
disposal must firs! be evacuated ofall  disposed of plant E&I 1) Remove 90% of
refrigerant. Items serviced for disposal craftsmen refrigerant when the
are to be documeited on Form CFC 2. compressor s
operating or 80% of
the refrigerant when
the compressor is not
operating or
2) Evacuate the small
appliance to 4 inches
of mercury vacuum.
3) Evacuate non small
appllances to 10
inches of mercury
Any equipment Ite ms containing Before Selected Labels will be provided by
refrigerant, that aie designated for appliance is contractor or the E&I Supervisor
disposal and have been evacuatedto  placed in the E&l craftsmen
remove the maxinium amount of disposal area
O refrigerant possible must be labeled a
Refrigerant Free appliance.
Issue Service and Form CFC 2 report  After Selected Hard Copy
to E&I Supervisor and Environmental Completion contractor or
Coordinator. plant E&I

craftsmen

6
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dFC Recovery Equipment:
~ Actlon Item When Who How
(additional Info)
All manufacturer Instructions are to be When servicing  All employees
followed when opi:rating ceriified CFC-containing  designated to
recovery equipment. equipment work on CFC-
containing
equipment
All recycling and recovery equipment is Before Environmental  Cerified Letter
required to be registered with the EPA. equipment is Coordinator
put in service
Verify that recove y or recycling Before Environmental The equipment is
‘equipment is certi ied. equipment is Coordinator required to have a label
put in service that reads the equipment
has been certified by an
approved equipment
organization to meet the
EPA's minimum
requirement for recycling
“or recovery intended for
use with CFC-containing
appliances.
Specific Applicable Equipment on Site:
Greater than 5( Lbs Full Charge :
C ocation Manufacturer/ Model Number Full Charge | Refrigerant | Cost Code
Serial Number Type
Kymene Vilter M16K355ESB 650 lbs. R22 1042100039
| 30588 J410
Paracol Patterson J-323-1A 150 Ibs. R22 1042100022
MCM 4B
Paracol Lewis Cimco J-407-1 250 lbs. 1042100022
M185017
Rosin Amine York 96-153359-01 2-Circuits
YCWI33AB0-46 60 R22 1042100044
60 R22
Lab York YLAMSO47735 2-Circuits
YCWZ88LMO 80 R22 1042030352
80 R22

i
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Q HERCULES - HATTIESBURG PLANT
| Form CFC-1
(Service Report)

Location /Area Date

Equipment Name and Service No.

Technician Narze

Leak Test Results/Was there a leak? O Yes  No

Source of Leak Corrective Actions Taken Recommendations

Refrigerant Added? O Yes ONo

o

Date Last Replenished
Total Refrigerant Added This Service Date
Total Days Sinc:2 Last Replenished
Equipment Rated Full Charge
Leak Rate (%)* =

#1bs refrigerant added 365 days
*Lecak Rate % = - x x 100%
# Ibs refrigerant in normal full charge # days since refrigerant last added

Is annual total eak rate to date greatef than 35%7? O Yes O No

If No, then OK.
If Yes, (1) then notify Environmental Department immediately, and

(2, repair leak(s) and retest within 30 days. ---——> Retest Date
Refrigerant Rec::overed or Recycled? O Yes O No: If Yes how much
Comments

O

[Z] Please send copies of this completed form to E&I Shop File and E&I Supervisor File.
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O HERCULES - HATTIESBURG PLANT
| Form CFC-2 |
(Disposal/Removal Form)

Technician Nam2 Date

Has Equipment >een designated for disposal? 0O Yes O No
If Yes record the: following:

Equipment manufacturer

Equipment Type

Model Number _

Serial number _

Location where :2quipment removed from.

ODoes equipment contain refrigerant? 0 Yes 0 No
If YES evacuate refrigerant using approved recovery and recycling equipment.

How much refric erant was recovered?

Was all obtainatile refrigerant recovered ? 0 Yes 0 No
If yes label the e.quipment with a Refrigerant-Free Appliance label.
Was equipment [abeled properly? O Yes [ No

mPlease send copies of this completed form to E&I Shop File and E&I Supervisor File.

O






HERCULES INCORPORATED

@
Memo

To: Whom It May Concern
From: Ellis Page

CcC: Charlie Jordan
Date:  09/23/99

Re: Epi Check-List

in checking for Epl leaks, on the Epi Check-list dated //Z/— ﬁ‘?
the information given was on the wrong reactor R401. The lnformatlon
O given should have been on R-100 which was leaking around the

agitator.

Signature m

Date —— Vq%

® Page 1



HERCULES INCORPORATED

®
Memo

To: Charlie Jordan

From: Willie Ducksworth
CC: Date: 09/24/99
Re: Epi R401 Reactor

| have checked with Curtis Ducksworth and to my knowledge there has
been no work done on reactor R-401.

Signature 42, L Qz A ‘,24,_;2

Date_ 7 54-59

@ Page 1






Eco-Systems, Inc. ®

Consultants, Engineers and Scientists

March 8, 1999

Mr. Charles Jordan

Environmental Supervisor

Hercules, Inc.

P.O. Box 1937

Hattiesburg, Mississippi 39403-1937

Re:  Environmental Engin eering/Consulting Services
Leak Detection and Repair
Kymene Process

Dear Mr. Jordan:

Eco-Systems appreciates the opportunity to again provide services to Hercules, Inc. We
performed monthly Leak Detection Monitoring services on the affected pumps and agitator of the
Kymene process on February 25, 1999. A total of three (3) pumps and one (1) agitator were
identified during the initial event in January, 1999. No unit was identified as leaking. A leaking
pump is defined in this case as one which has a vapor emission of greater than 5,000 parts per
million (ppm). All applicable pumps were tested using a Thermo Environmental Model 680B
organic vapor meter. Results of these tests are shown on Table | and Table 2 (attached). This
report may be placed in the previously provided binder in the First Quarter, 1999 section. Please
do not hesitate to contact us at (601) 936-4440 should you have any questions.

Sincerely,
Ecq-Systems, Inc.

Wade Steinriede
Staff Scientist

Jeffrey L. Alien, PE.
Senior Engineer

Enclosures

4294 Lakeland Drive, Suite 200  Jackson, MS 39208 * Phone (601) 936-4440 o Fax (601) 936-4463



Table 1
Epichlorohydrin Screening Results - Pumps ESI @

February, 1999

O Hercules. Inc.

Tag ID Component Chemical Stream Location Screen | Screen Reading ||
Type Date (ppm)
0001.00 Pump Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 2/25/99 0.0
0026.00 Pump Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 2/25/99 0.0
0177.00 Pump Epichlorohvdrin Bottom of R-401 2/25/99 0.0
Percent Leakers 0%

O

Eco-Systems, Inc. Page 1 of 1 3725199



Table 2
Epichlorohydrin Screening Results - Agitators ESI @

O February, 1999
Hercules, Inc.
Tag ID Cor;ponent Chemical Stream Location Screen Date Screen Reading
ype (ppm)
0176.00 Agitator Epichlorohvdrin Top of R-401 2/25/99 0.0
Percent Leakers 0%

O

Eco-Systems, Inc. Page 1 of 1 3/25/99
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Table 1

Epichlorohydrin Screening Results - January, 1999
Hercules. Inc.

ESI (VD

TagID Component _Chemical Stream Location Screen | Screen Reading
Type Date (ppm)

0001.00 Pump Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 9.4
0001.01 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0001.02 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0002.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1714/99 0.0
0003.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0004.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0005.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 32.0
0006.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1714199 0.0
0006.01 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1714/99 0.0
0007.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0008.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0009.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0010.01 Valve Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0010.02 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0010.03 Conncctor Epichlorohvdrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0011.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0012.00 Conncclor Epichlorohvdrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0013.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0014.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0015.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1714/99 0.0
0015.01 Conncctor Epichlorohvdrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0015.02 Conncclor Epichlorohyvdrin Truck Loading 1714199 0.0
0015.03 Conncctor Epichlorohyvdrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0015.04 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1714199 0.0
0015.05 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0015.06 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0015.07 Conncclor Epichlorohvdrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0015.08 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0015.09 Conncclor Epichlorohyvdrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0015.10 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1714/99 0.0
0015.11 Conncclor Epichlorohvdrin Truck Loading 1714199 0.0
0015.12 Conncclor Epichlorohvdrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0015.13 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1714199 0.0
0015.14 Valve Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1714199 0.0
0015.15 Conncctor Epichlorohvdrin Truck Loading 1714/99 0.0
0015.16 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1714/99 0.0
0016.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1714/99 0.0
0017.00 Valve Epichlorohvdrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0018.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1714/99 0.0
0019.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1714/99 20.5
0020.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0021.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0

Iico-Systems, Inc.

Page 1 of 9

2/12/99



Table 1
Epichlorohydrin Screening Results - January, 1999 ESI @

O Herculcs. Inc.
Tag ID Co?;);:cnt Chemical Stream Location Slc)l:;zn Scre?;:':;ldmg
0021.01 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1714199 0.0
0021.02 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1714199 0.0
0021.03 Conncctor Epichlorohyvdrin Truck Loading 1714799 0.0
0021.04 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1714/99 0.0
0022.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 > 500.0
0023.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0024.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0025.00 Conncclor Epichlorohvdrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0025.01 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1714799 0.0
0025.02 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0025.03 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Linc from Loading | 1/14/99 0.0
0025.04 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Linc from Loading | 1/14/99 0.0
0025.05 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Linc from Loading | 1/14/99 0.0
0025.06 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Linc from Loading | 1/14/99 0.0
0025.07 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Linc from Loading | 1/14/99 0.0
0025.08 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Linc from Loading | 1/14/99 0.0
0025.09 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Linc from Loading | 1/14/99 0.0
0025.10 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Linc from Loading | 1/14/99 0.0
0025.11 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Linc from Loading | 1/14/99 0.0

O 0025.12 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Linc from Loading | 1/14/99 0.0
0026.00 Pump Epichlorohvdrin Truck Loading 1714/99 0.0
0027.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1714/99 0.0
0028.00 Valve Epichlorohvdrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0028.01 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1714/99 0.0
0028.02 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1714/99 0.0
0029.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0030.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1714/99 0.0
0031.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1714/99 0.0
0032.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1714/99 0.0
0033.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0033.01 Conncctor Epichlorohvdrin Truck Loading 1714799 0.0
0033.02 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1714/99 0.0
0033.03 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1714/99 0.0
0033.04 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1714/99 0.0
0033.05 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0033.06 Conncclor Epichlorohvdrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0033.07 Conncctor Epichlorohiydrin Truck Loading 1714/99 0.0
0034.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0035.00 Valve Epichlorohvdrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 10.7
0035.01 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1714/99 0.0

O 0035.02 Conncctor Epichlorohyvdrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0035.03 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0

Iico-Systems, Inc. Page 2 of 9 2/12/99



Table 1

Epichlorohydrin Screening Results - January, 1999
Herculces, Inc.

ESI (D

Tag ID Component Chemical Stream Location Screen | Screen Reading
Type Date (ppm)
0036.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0037.00 Valvc Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1714/99 0.0
0038.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0039.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1/14/99 0.0
0040.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1714/99 0.0
0040.01 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Linc from Loading | 1/14/99 0.0
0040.02 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Linc from Loading | 1/14/99 0.0
0040.03 Conncctor Epichloroliydrin Linc from Loading | 1/14/99 0.0
0041.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Truck Loading 1714/99 0.0
0042.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1714199 0.0
0042.01 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1/14/99 0.0
0042.02 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1/14/99 0.0
0043.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1/14/99 0.0
0043.01 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1/14/99 0.0
0043.02 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1714/99 0.0
0044.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1714199 0.0
0045.00 Connector Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1714/99 0.0
0045.01 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1/14/99 0.0
O 0045.02 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1/14/99 0.0
0045.03 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1714199 0.0
0045.04 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1714/99 0.0
0045.05 Conncctor Epichlorohvdrin EP1 Storage 1714199 0.0
0045.06 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1/14/99 0.0
0046.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1714/99 0.0
0046.01 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1714799 0.0
0046.02 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1/14/99 0.0
0047.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storagc 1/14/99 0.0
0047.01 Conncctlor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1/14/99 0.0
0047.02 Connector Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1714/99 0.0
0047.03 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1/14/99 0.0
0047.04 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1/14/99 0.0
0047.05 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1714/99 0.0
0047.06 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1714199 0.0
0047.07 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1/14/99 0.0
0047.08 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1714/99 0.0
0048.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1/14/99 0.0
0049.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1714/99 0.0
0050.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1/14/99 0.0
0051.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1714/99 0.0
(052.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1/14/99 0.0
O 0053.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1/14/99 0.0
0054.00 Conncctor Epichloroliydrin EPI Storage 1/14/99 0.0

IEco-Systems, Inc. Page 3 of 9 2/12/99
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Table 1

Epichlorohydrin Screening Results - January, 1999
Herculcs, Inc.

ESI (V)

Tag ID Component Chemical Stream Location Screen | Screen Reading
Type Date (ppm)
0055.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1714/99 0.0
0056.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin EP1 Storage 1714/99 0.0
0057.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1714/99 0.0
0058.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin EP!1 Storage 1714/99 0.0
0059.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1/14/99 0.0
0059.01 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storagc 1/14/99 0.0
0059.02 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin EP1 Storage 1/14/99 0.0
0060.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1/14/99 0.0
0061.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1/14/99 0.0
0062.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1714/99 0.0
0063.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1/14/99 0.0
0063.01 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Linc from K-110 1714199 0.0
0063.02 Connector Epichlorohydrin Line from K-110 1/14/99 0.0
0063.03 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Linc from K-110 1/14/99 0.0
0063.04 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Linc from K-110 1714199 0.0
0063.05 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Linc from K-110 1/14/99 0.0
0063.06 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Linc from K-110 1714/99 0.0
0063.07 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Linc from K-110 1/14/99 0.0
0063.08 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Linc [rom K-110 1714/99 0.0
0063.09 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Linc from K-110 1/14/99 0.0
0063.10 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Linc [rom K-110 1/14/99 0.0
0064.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1/14/99 0.0
0064.01 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1714/99 0.0
0064.02 Conncclor Epichlorohvdrin EPI Storage 1714/99 0.0
(064.03 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1714799 0.0
0064.04 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storagc 1/14/99 0.0
0064.006 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin EPI Storage 1714199 0.0
0065.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin 2nd Lvl-Wcigh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0066.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin 2nd Lvl-Wcigh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0067.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin 2nd Lvl-Wceigh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0067.01 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin 2nd Lvl-Wcigh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0067.02 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin 2nd Lvl-Weigh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0068.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin 2nd Lvl-Wcigh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0069.00 Conncctor Epichlorohvdrin 2nd Lvl-Weigh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0070.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin 2nd Lvl-Weigh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0071.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin 2nd Lvl-Wecigh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0071.01 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin 2nd Lvl-Wecigh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0071.02 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin 2nd Lvl-Wcigh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0072.00 Conncctor Epichlorohvdrin 2nd Lvl-Wcigh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0073.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin 2nd Lvl-Weigh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0073.01 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin 2nd Lvl-Weigh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0073.02 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin 2nd Lvl-Wecigh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
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Epichlorohydrin Screening Results - January, 1999 ESI @
O Herculcs, Inc.

Tag ID ¢o$;);:ent .Chemical Stream Location Slc):iin Scre?::n::;admg
0074.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin 2nd Lvl-Wcigh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0074.01 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin 2nd Lvl-Wecigh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
- 0074.02 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin 2nd Lvl-Wecigh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0075.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin 2nd LvI-Wecigh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0076.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin 2nd Lvl-Wcigh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0077.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin 2nd Lvl-Wcigh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0078.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Ist Lvl-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0078.01 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Ist Lvl-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0078.02 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Ist Lvl-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0078.02 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Ist Lvl-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0078.04 Connectlor Epichlorohydrin Ist Lvl-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0078.05 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Ist Lvi-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0078.06 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Ist Lvl-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0078.07 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Ist Lvl-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0078.08 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Ist Lvl-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0078.09 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Ist Lvi-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0079.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Ist Lvi-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0079.01 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Ist Lvl-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0079.02 Conncclor Epichlorohvdrin Ist Lvi-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
O 0080.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Ist Lvl-Weigh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0080.01 Conncctor Epichlorohvdrin Ist LvI-Weigh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0080.02 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Ist Lvl-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0080.03 Conncclor Epichlorohvdrin Ist Lvl-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0080.04 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Ist Lvl-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0080.05 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Ist Lvl-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0081.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Ist Lvl-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0082.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Ist Lvl-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0082.01 Conneclor Epichlorohydrin Ist Lvl-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0083.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Ist Lvl-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
(084.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin Ist Lvl-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0085.00 Conncctor Epichlorohvdrin Ist Lvl-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0086.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Ist Lvl-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0087.00 Conncctor Epichlorohvdrin Ist Lvl-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0088.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin Ist Lvl-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0089.00 Conncctlor Epichlorohydrin Ist Lvl-Wiegh Tks | 1/14/99 - 0.0
0090.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin Ist Lvl-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0091.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Ist Lvi-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0091.01 Conncctlor Epichlorohydrin Ist Lvl-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0092.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Ist Lvl-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0093.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Ist Lvi-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
O 0093.01 | Conncctor | Epichlorohydrin | Ist Lvl-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0093.02 Conncclor Epichlorohvdrin Ist Lvl-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
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0094.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Ist Lvl-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0095.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Ist Lvl-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0096.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Ist Lvl-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0097.00 Valve Epichlorohvdrin Ist Lvl-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0098.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Ist Lvl-Wicgh Tks | 1/14/99 0.0
0099.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Grd Level-R-401 1714199 0.0
0100.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Grd Level-R-401 1714199 0.0
0101.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin Grd Level-R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0102.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Grd Level-R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0103.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin Grd Level-R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0104.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Grd Level-R-401 1714/99 0.0
0105.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin Grd Level-R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0106.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Grd Level-R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0107.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Grd Level-R-401 1714/99 0.0
0108.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin Grd Level-R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0109.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Grd Level-R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0110.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Grd Levcl-R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0111.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin Grd Level-R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0112.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Grd Level-R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0113.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Grd Levcel-R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0114.00 Conncclor Epiclilorohvdrin Grd Level-R401 1/14/99 0.0
0115.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Grd Level-R-401 1714/99 0.0
0116.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin Grd Level-R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0117.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Grd Level-R-401 1714/99 0.0
0118.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Grd Level-R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0119.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin Grd Level-R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0120.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Grd Level-R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0120.01 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Grd Level-R-401 1714799 0.0
0121.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Grd Level-R-401 1714/99 0.0
0122.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin Loading St. - N Sidc | 1/14/99 0.0
0122.01 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Loading St. - N Sidc | 1/14/99 0.0
0122.02 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Loading St. - N Sidc | 1/14/99 0.0
0122.03 Conncctor | - Epichlorohydrin Loading St. - N Side | 1/14/99 0.0
0122.04 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Loading St. - N Sidc | 1/14/99 0.0
0122.05 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Loading St. - N Sidc | 1/14/99 0.0
0122.06 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Loading St. - N Side | 1/14/99 0.0
0123.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin Loading St. - N Sidc | 1/14/99 0.0
0123.01 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Loading St. - N Sidc | 1/14/99 0.0
0123.02 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Loading St. - N Sidc | 1/14/99 0.0
0123.03 Conncclor Epichlorohvdrin Loading St. - N Sidc | 1/14/99 0.0
0124.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Loading St. - N Sidc | 1/14/99 0.0
012401 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Loading St. - N Sidc | 1/14/99 0.0
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0124.02 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Loading St. - N Sidc | 1/14/99 0.0
0124.03 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Loading St. - N Sidc | 1/14/99 0.0
0124.04 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Loading St. - N Sidc | 1/14/99 0.0
0124.05 Valve Epichlorohydrin Loading St. - N Sidc | 1/14/99 0.0
0124.06 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Loading St. - N Side | 1/14/99 0.0
0124.07 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Loading St. - N Sidc | 1/14/99 0.0
0125.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin Loading St. - N Sidc | 1/14/99 0.0
0126.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Loading St. - N Sidc | 1/14/99 0.0
0127.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Loading St. - N Sidc | 1/14/99 0.0
0156.00 Conncctlor Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1714/99 0.0
0157.00 Connector Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1714/99 0.0
0157.01 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0158.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0159.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0160.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1714/99 0.0
0160.01 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1714/99 0.0
0160.02 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0160.03 Conncctor Epichlorohvdrin Top of R-401 1714/99 0.0
O 0161.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0161.01 Conncctor Epichlorohvdrin Top of R-401 1714/99 0.0
0161.02 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1714/99 0.0
0162.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0163.00 Conncctor Epichlorohvdrin Top of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0164.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1714/99 0.0
0164.01 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1714/99 0.0
0164.02 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1714799 0.0
0164.03 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0165.00 Conncclor Epichlorohvdrin Top of R-401 1714/99 0.0
0165.01 Conncctlor Epichlorohvdrin Top of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0165.02 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Top ol R-401 1714199 0.0
0166.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1714199 0.0
0166.01 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1714/99 0.0
0166.02 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0167.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1714/99 0.0
0167.01 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0167.02 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0168.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1714/99 0.0
0168.01 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1714/99 0.0
0168.02 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1714199 0.0
0169.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1714/99 0.0
O 0169.01 Connector Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1714/99 0.0
0169.02 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
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0169.03 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1714199 0.0
0169.04 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0170.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0170.01 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1714/99 0.0
0170.02 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0170.03 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0171.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0171.01 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0171.02 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0171.03 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1714/99 0.0
0172.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1714799 0.0
0172.01 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0172.02 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0173.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1714/99 0.0
0173.01 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0173.02 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0174.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0174.01 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 171499 0.0
O 0174.02 Conncclor Epichlorohvdrin Top of R-401 1/74/99 0.0
0175.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0175.01 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Top of R-401 1714/99 0.0
0175.02 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Top ol R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0176.00 Agitator Epichlorohvdrin Top of R-401 1714/99 0.0
0177.00 Pump Epichlorohydrin Bottom of R-40)1 1714/99 0.0
0177.01 Con‘.cclor Epichlorohydrin Bottom of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0177.02 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Bottom of R-401 1714799 0.0
0177.03 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Bottom of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0177.04 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Bottom of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0177.05 Conncctor Epichlorohvdrin Bottom of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0178.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin Bottom of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0178.01 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Bottom of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0178.02 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Bottom of R-401 1714/99 0.0
0179.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Bottom of R-401 1714/99 0.0
0179.01 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Bottom of R-40)1 1714/99 0.0
0180.00 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Bottom of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0180.01 Conncctor Epichlorohydrin Bottom of R-4(}1 1714199 0.0
0180.02 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Bottom of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
0180.03 Conncctor Epichlorohvdrin Bottom of R-401 1714/99 0.0
0181.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin Bottom of R-401 1714199 0.0
0181.01 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Bottom of R-401 1714/99 0.0
O 0182.00 Valve Epichlorohydrin Bottom of R-401 1714799 0.0
0183.00 Conncclor Epichlorohydrin Bottom of R-401 1/14/99 0.0
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0183.01 Conn<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>